JAMES RISHER and CAROLYN RISHER, et al.,

Intervenors/Appellants,

v.

TOWN OF INGLIS, a municipality of the State of Florida,

Plaintiff/Appellee.

Appeal From a Final Judgment of the Eighth Judicial Circuit, In and For Levy County, Florida

Case No.: 87-436-CA

INITIAL BRIEF FOR INTERVENORS/APPELLANTS

LEWIS E. DINKINS 102 West Pennsylvania Avenue Dunnellon, Florida 32630 (904) 489-2777 Attorney for Intervenors/ Appellants

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from a Final Judgment rendered in a bond validation proceeding by the Circuit Court of the Eighth Judicial Circuit, In and For Levy County, Florida, entered on the 12th day of November, 1987, by the Honorable Elzie S. Sanders, determining the TOWN OF INGLIS, a municipality of the State of Florida, had the authority to incur the bonded debt sought to be validated and confirmed by said proceedings. Appellate jurisdiction is conferred by \$75.08, Fla. Stat. (1967) and Rules 9.110(a)(1) and 9.030(a)(1)(b)(i) of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure.

On October 22, 1987, the Circuit Court for Levy County, Florida, held a show cause hearing to ascertain if there was any basis for denying the TOWN OF INGLIS' prayer seeking to validate certain bonds, notes and special assessments necessary to fund certain improvements to be made to real property allegedly within the boundary of the municipality. Pursuant to \$75.07, Fla. Stat. (1967), Appellants, property owners and taxpayers seeking to avoid the legal creation of a debt which they, in common with certain property owners and taxpayers of the TOWN OF INGLIS, might be compelled to pay as a result

-4-

of the bond validation procedure, intervened in the bond validation proceedings, questioning the TOWN OF INGLIS' authority to incur the bonded indebtedness. Appellants had, prior to the commencement of the bond validation proceedings, filed a class action lawsuit in the Circuit Court of the Eighth Judicial Circuit, In and For Levy County, Florida, on June 5, 1987, requesting certain Declaratory and Injunctive relief regarding the TOWN OF INGLIS' authority to conduct business under the presently alleged valid Town Charter of 1975, as well as the TOWN's territorial jurisdiction over Appellants' real property. Appellants expressed their concern the res judicata effect attributable to Final Judgments entered in bond validation proceedings might preclude Appellants from further questioning the TOWN OF INGLIS' authority to conduct municipal business in its class action lawsuit, also currently pending before the Honorable Elzie S. Sanders. Appellants requested the bond validation proceedings be stayed pending resolution of the class action lawsuit. The Court deferred ruling on the matter and ordered counsel for each party to brief the issue of the propriety of issuing a stay order in the bond validation proceedings,

-5-

pending resolution of Intervenors/Appellants' class action lawsuit. No substantive evidence was presented at the show cause hearing concerning the TOWN OF INGLIS' authority to conduct business. On November 12, 1987, the Honorable Elzie S. Sanders entered an Order of Final Judgment in the bond validation proceedings. The Court in its Final Judgment failed to address the propriety of issuing a stay order in the bond validation proceedings pending resolution of Intervenors/Appellants' class action lawsuit, the precise issue the Court had previously ordered respective counsel to brief. Instead, the Court, in a conclusory fashion, stated the TOWN OF INGLIS was a valid municipality possessing the requisite power and authority to conduct municipal acts, even though no evidence had been submitted at the show cause hearing regarding that issue. Intervenors/ Appellants maintain the Final Judgment entered by the Eighth Judicial Circuit in the bond validation proceedings should be vacated because there was no evidence submitted to or cited by the Court which would sustain the conclusions contained in the Judgment regarding the authority of the TOWN OF INGLIS to conduct its municipal business. Moreover, Intervenors/Appellants maintain it was error not to grant their request for a

. د

-6-

stay order in the bond validation proceedings pending resolution of Intervenors/Appellants' prior-filed class action lawsuit requesting certain Declaratory and Injunctive relief regarding the TOWN OF INGLIS' authority to conduct municipal business. The principal issue in the class action lawsuit, the authority of the TOWN OF INGLIS to conduct its municipal business, is also the principal issue before the Court in the bond validation proceedings. Accordingly, Intervenors/ Appellants believe the Trial Court should have granted its request to stay the bond validation proceedings, consistent with the well-established policy of Courts to honor filing priority of suit, staying the second action instead of the action first commenced, where similiar parties and subject matter are involved.

-7-

STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. On the 22nd day of October, 1987, the Honorable Elzie S. Sanders, Circuit Court Judge for the Eighth Judicial Circuit, In and For Levy County, Florida, conducted a hearing to show cause why the TOWN OF INGLIS, a municipality of the State of Florida, Plaintiff in a bond validation proceeding, should not be entitled to have its bonds, notes and special assessments validated and confirmed with respect to certain improvements to be made to the real property allegedly within the boundary of the municipality.

2. Appellants in the instant action, property owners and taxpayers affected by the issuance of the proposed bonds, intervened in the bond validation proceedings because they believed the TOWN OF INGLIS had no authority to incur the bonded indebtedness.

3. Appellants had, prior to the commencement of the bond validation proceedings, on June 5, 1987, filed a class action lawsuit in the Circuit Court of the Eighth Judicial Circuit, In and For Levy County, Florida, requesting certain Declaratory and Injunctive relief regarding the TOWN OF INGLIS' authority to conduct business under the presently alleged valid Town

-8-

Charter of 1975 as well as the TOWN's territorial jurisdiction over Appellants' real property. The class action lawsuit was also being heard by the Honorable Elzie S. Sanders.

4. Appellants, at the show cause hearing, expressed their concern the res judicata effect attributable to judgments entered in bond validation proceedings might preclude them from further litigating the question of the TOWN OF INGLIS' authority to conduct municipal business in its class action lawsuit.

5. Appellants requested the bond validation proceedings be stayed pending resolution of the class action lawsuit.

6. The Court deferred ruling on the matter and ordered respective counsel to brief the issue of the propriety of issuing a stay order in a related action which was not on appeal. The Court did not entertain any substantive evidence substantiating the TOWN OF INGLIS' authority to conduct business.

7. On November 2, 1987, the Honorable Elzie S. Sanders entered a Final Judgment in the bond validation proceedings but failed to address in any manner the propriety of issuing a stay order in the bond validation proceedings pending resolution of the

-9-

proceedings pending resolution of the class action lawsuit dispite having ordered respective counsel to brief that specific issue.

3

8. The Final Judgment concluded the TOWN OF INGLIS was a valid municipality possessing the requisite power and authority to conduct municipal acts even though no evidence had been submitted at the show cause hearing that would support that conclusion. Nor did the Court cite any independent evidentiary matters in support of its conclusion.

9. On the 20th day of November, 1987, Appellants filed a Motion for Rehearing setting forth the aforementioned objections.

10. On the 23rd day of November, 1987, the Court entered an Order denying Appellant's Motion for Rehearing.

11. On the 15th day of December, 1987, Intervenors/ Appellants filed their Notice of Appeal from the Final Judgment rendered in the bond validation proceeding.

-10-

SUMMARY ARGUMENT

The Final Judgment rendered in the bond validation proceeding conducted by the Circuit Court of the Eighth Judicial Circuit, In and For Levy County, Florida, entered on the 12th day of December, 1987, by the Honorable Elzie S. Sanders, concluding the TOWN OF INGLIS was a valid municipality possessing the requisite power and authority to conduct municipal acts was erroneous as a matter of law because there was no evidence submitted to or cited by the Court that would support such a conclusion.

The Trial Court committed further error by failing to grant Appellants' request for a stay order in the bond validation proceedings pending resolution of Appellants' prior-filed class action lawsuit requesting certain Declaratory and Injunctive Relief respecting the TOWN OF INGLIS' authority to conduct municipal business where the principal issue involved in the class action lawsuit and the bond validation proceedings was the same, i.e., whether the TOWN OF INGLIS possessed the fundamental authority to conduct its municipal business.

-11-

ARGUMENT

5

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ENTERING A FINAL JUDGMENT WHICH CONTAINED CONCLUSIONS REGARDING THE AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF INGLIS TO CONDUCT ITS MUNICIPAL BUSINESS WHERE THERE WAS NO EVIDENCE SUBMITTED TO OR CITED BY THE COURT WHICH WOULD SUSTAIN THOSE CONCLUSIONS.

Florida Statute \$75.07 permits any property owner, taxpayer, citizen or person interested to intervene at the time bond validation hearings are held, and by virtue of said intervention to become a party to the action. Accordingly, Appellants intervened in the instant bond validation proceedings for fear the res judicata effect attributable to Final Judgments entered in bond validation might preclude further argument questioning the authority of the TOWN OF INGLIS to conduct its municipal business in its class action lawsuit brought prior to the commencement of the bond validation proceedings. See Appendix, Exhibit "A", Appellants' Complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive Relief. The crucial issue involved in both cases is whether the TOWN OF INGLIS possesses the requisite power and authority to conduct its municipal activities. It is clear the basic function of a Court in a bond validation proceeding is to determine whether the authorizing body has the power to act. \$75.02, Fla. Stat. (1967); State v. City of Miami, 369 So.2d 651,

-12-

654 (Fla. 1980).

Appellants requested the bond validation proceedings be stayed pending resolution of class action lawsuit. The Court deferred its ruling, pending submission of briefs of respective counsel considering the propriety of issuing a stay order in a related action not on appeal where the principal issue in the respective actions were similiar, if not identical. The Court did not enter any substantive evidence concerning the TOWN OF INGLIS' authority to conduct its municipal business. In fact, no evidence on any substantive matter was tendered.

On November 12, 1987, the Honorable Elzie S. Sanders entered the Final Judgment in the bond validation proceedings. See Appendix, Exhibit "D". The Final Judgment failed to address in any manner the Appellants' request that the bond validation hearings be stayed and concluded the TOWN OF INGLIS was a valid municipality possessing the requisite power and authority to conduct municipal acts. Appellants fail to understand how the Court could conclude the TOWN OF INGLIS was a valid municipality possessing the requisite power and authority to conduct municipal acts when no evidence

-13-

had been submitted to or cited by the Court supporting such a conclusion. Moreover, Judge Sanders was quite emphatic at the show cause hearing that the briefs to be submitted by respective counsel address no substantive issue except the propriety of issuing a stay order in the bond validation proceedings under the circumstances in the case at bar. Clearly, judgments must be based on pleadings and evidence. <u>Bannen v. Trammell</u>, 118 So. 167, 170 (Fla. 1928); <u>Paul</u> <u>v. Commercial Bank of Ocala</u>, 663 So. 265 (Fla. 1913); <u>Cooper v. Cooper</u>, 406 So.2d 1223, 1224 (Fla. 4th D.C.A. 1981); 61 Am Jur2d, Pleading, §382.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO GRANT INTERVENORS/APPELLANTS' REQUEST FOR A STAY ORDER IN THE BOND VALIDATION PROCEEDINGS PENDING RESOLUTION OF INTERVENORS/APPELLANTS' PRIOR-FILED CLASS ACTION LAWSUIT REQUESTING CERTAIN DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF RESPECTING THE TOWN OF INGLIS' AUTHORITY TO CONDUCT ITS MUNICIPAL BUSINESS WHERE THE PRINCIPAL ISSUE TO BE DECIDED IN BOTH PROCEEDINGS IS THE AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF INGLIS TO CONDUCT ITS MUNICIPAL BUSINESS.

It is clear from the requested relief in Appellants' class action Complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive relief, specifically paragraphs 2(a) and (d), the principal issue to be resolved is whether the TOWN OF INGLIS possesses the requisite power and authority to conduct its municipal functions either

-14-

because the town boundaries are so uncertain or because the amended Charter recorded in the office of the Secretary of State on October 30, 1975, is voidable for attempting to effect changes not within the power of a municipality to change or change without a referendum. Furthermore, Appellants have already established the principal purpose of bond validation proceedings is the determination of whether the authorizing body has the power to act.

Appellants' Memorandum of Law regarding the propriety of issuing a stay order in a related but separate action not on appeal essentially asserts where two actions are pending between the same parties involving the same state of facts and seeking to accomplish the same results the Trial Court may stay proceedings in the latter action until the prior action has been heard and decided. Appellants' brief further notes that residents and taxpayers have the right to invoke the aid of equity to prevent the illegal creation of debt, which they in common with certain property owners, may be compelled to pay. Appellants argue it has become an accepted practice among Courts to honor the filing priority of suits where similiar parties and subject matter are involved. Finally,

-15-

Appellants maintain bond validation proceedings by their very nature should be restricted in scope and, whenever possible, limited to evaluating whether or not the technical prequisities to the bond validation process have been complied with. Accordingly, Appellants submit the class action lawsuit is a more proper forum in which to extensively question the authority of a municipality to act. See Appendix, Exhibit "B", Appellants' Memorandum of Law, Propriety of Issuing a Stay Order in a Collateral, But Separate Action Not on Appeal.

Notwithstanding Judge Sanders' admonishment that respective counsel were not to brief any other issues than the propriety of issuing a stay order under the circumstances existing in the instant case, Appellee, addressed several substantive issues, apparently with the ultimate intention of demonstrating there are no common issues in both proceedings and, therefore, a stay of the bond validation proceedings would be inappropriate. See Appendix, Exhibit "C", Appellee's Memorandum on Objections to Validation. Appellee contends <u>State v. City of Miami</u>, 379 So.2d 651 (Fla. 1980), completely resolves any issues raised by

-16-

Appellants' class action suit questioning whether the current 1975 Town Charter for the TOWN OF INGLIS was properly adopted. Appellants believe State v. City of Miami supra, is easily distinguishable. State v. City of Miami supra, assumed and never questioned the City Commission's authority to approve the issuance of revenue bonds. The Court however, did acknowledge the first function of a tribunal in a bond validation proceeding is to determine whether the authorizing body has the power to act. Clearly, the Eighth Judicial Circuit, in the case at bar, would be remiss to examine the TOWN OF INGLIS' authority and power to act where it was put on notice, by virtue of Appellants' intervention in the bond validation proceedings, that there were serious questions as to whether the TOWN OF INGLIS possessed the fundamental power to act. The Court in State v. City of Miami supra, engaged in a second tier analysis, and determined the municipality in question was exercising its power in accordance with the purpose and intent of existing law. The Court never really addressed the issue of whether the City Commission validly possessed the power to act. It either assumed such power or failed to indicate the evidentiary basis for that conclusion in its opinion. Further, Appellee's

-17-

assertion that State v. City of Miami, supra, is dispositive of Appellants' due process argument likewise misses the mark. Appellants maintain there is a violation of due process because the TOWN OF INGLIS continues to assert an improper boundary line and/or has failed to follow the specific statutory procedures mandated for annexation, resulting in Appellants being improperly assessed for taxes on acreage not legally within the boundaries of the municipality of the TOWN OF INGLIS. Appellants' claims of violation of due process are not based upon a lack of referendum to validate and approve the revenue bond issue in the bond validation proceedings. The remaining portion of Appellee's brief consists of several cases which Appellee cites for the proposition that an alleged boundary dispute is a collateral issue which cannot properly be considered in a bond validation hearing or proceeding. State v. City of Coral Cables, 154 So. 234, 243 (Fla. 1934) does not stand for the proposition that all boundary disputes are collateral in nature. Certainly boundary disputes are collateral in nature where the issue raised by the interested party is compliance with statutory prerequisities, annexation procedures, for example. However, a boundary dispute

-18-

is not collateral where the boundary issue is intertwined with the existence of the municipality itself because the legal description is so uncertain or the power of the municipal government to act with respect to certain real property is brought into question because the municipality has failed to either properly comply with the procedures for adoption of ordinances and resolutions or charter amendments. In the case at bar, the boundary dispute referred to in the class action lawsuit and raised in the bond validation proceedings is not collateral in nature, but goes directly to the question of the municipality's power to govern the territory in dispute. State v. City of Miami, 103 So.2d 185 (Fla. 1985). Moreover, Appellants in the instant case differ from the Appellant in National Airlines v. County of Dade, 76 So.2d 277 (Fla. 1954), who intervened and contested the validation proceedings on the basis that the County Port Authority had violated an agreement respecting equal allocation of space in a terminal building rather than "contesting the right, power, and authority of Dade County to issue and sell ... revenue bonds." Appellants having raised objections at the bond validation proceedings not collateral in

-19-

nature, contend the Eighth Circuit should have continued to uphold the accepted practice of Courts honoring the filing priority of suits, staying the second action instead of the action first commenced, where similiar parties and subject matter are involved.

CONCLUSION

2

The Final Judgment entered by the Circuit Court of the Eighth Judicial Circuit, In and For Levy County, Florida, on the 12th day of November, 1987, concluding the TOWN OF INGLIS, a municipality of the State of Florida, Plaintiff in the bond validation proceedings, had authority to incur the bonded indebtedness sought to be validated and confirmed by said proceedings was erroneous as a matter of law because the conclusion was not supported by any evidence cited or proffered. Further, the Eighth Judicial Circuit erred as a matter of law in not granting Intervenors/Appellants' request to stay the bond validation proceedings pending resolution of Intervenors/Appellants' prior-filed class action lawsuit requesting certain declaratory and injunctive relief concerning the TOWN OF INGLIS' authority to conduct business because the principal issue in the class action lawsuit, the authority of the TOWN OF INGLIS to conduct its municipal business, was also the principal issue before Court in the bond validation proceedings.

WHEREFORE, Intervenors/Appellants respectfully request this Honorable Court:

(1) Vacate the Trial Court's Final Judgment entered in the bond validation proceedings

-21-

on the 12th day of November, 1987, in the Eighth Judicial Circuit, In and For Levy County, Florida;

(2) Issue an Order staying the bond validation proceedings pending resolution of Appellants' class action lawsuit currently before the Eighth Judicial Circuit, In and For Levy

County, Florida.