STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from a Final Judgment entered in a bond validation proceeding by the Circuit Court of the Eighth Judicial Circuit, in and for Levy County, Florida, entered on November 12, 1987, by the Honorable Elzie S. Sanders, Circuit Judge, validating a revenue bond issue for a water system for the TOWN OF INGLIS, a municipality of the State of Florida. Said Final Judgment followed an Order to Show Cause entered by Judge Sanders on September 16, 1987, a hearing was set by the Order to Show Cause which was held on October 22, 1987, and the filings of memoranda by the Appelle and by Appellants.

At the hearing, testimony was presented as to the existence of the Town as a municipality, and as to the passage of the various resolutions and ordinances, certified copies of which were attached to the Complaint in the cause.

A Motion for Rehearing was filed by Intervenors on November 20, 1987, and the Circuit Court entered an Order Denying Motion for Rehearing on November 23, 1987. This appeal followed on December 15, 1987.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On October 22, 1987, a show cause hearing was held on the Petition of the TOWN OF INGLIS, a municipality of the State of Florida, to validate revenue bonds for a water system for the Town. At the hearing, without formal appearance or pleading, certain persons alleged to be property owners and taxpayers affected by the proposed issuance of the revenue bonds, announced their intervention through their attorney, LEWIS E. DINKINS. Mr.Dinkins presented, briefly, his arguments, agreeing to the filing of memoranda on his position, stating that another case was pending challenging a 1975 amendment to the Charter of the Town of Inglis and challenging the north boundary line of the Town. He further mentioned the lack of a referendum on the bond issue and an alleged resulting violation of due process.

The existing case to which Mr. Dinkins referred is Case No. 87-265 CA, Cross et al. v. Town of Inglis, presently pending in the Circuit Court, Eighth Judicial Circuit, in and for Levy County, Florida. A review of the pending case indicates that there has been no action on the case since the filing of a Response to Motion to Dismiss which was filed by Mr. Dinkins on October 9, 1987. There has been no further action by Mr. Dinkins to attempt to resolve the issues which he indicates should have a bearing upon the bond validation

case (app. B). The two issues, as presented by his Memorandum of Law in this cause before the trial court are the authority of the Town of Inglis to conduct business under the presently alleged Town Charter of 1975, as well as the jurisdiction of the Town over certain real property which the Intervenors/ Appellants have sought to put into issue.

The trial court entered its judgment finding that the Town of Inglis is a municipality of the State of Florida; that authority to issue revenue bonds is conferred by Fla. Stat. Ch. 166, Part II, and Fla. Stat. § 215.431; that the Town has authority to levy special assessments pursuant to Fla. Stat Ch. 170; that the Town did adopt the requisite resolutions and ordinances, including the issuance of water revenue bond anticipation notes; that the requisite meetings and publications were made; that the necessary publications and notifications for an equalization hearing were made and that the equalization hearing was held; that the Town has the authority to pledge water revenue for the payment of bonds; that there is no requirement for an election on the issuance of the bonds; and, generally, that all conditions of the constitution and laws of the State of Florida have been met.

There has been no challenge to these findings, other than authority of the Town to act on such bonds.

SUMMARY ARGUMENT

There has been no issue raised as to the propriety of the procedures through which the bond validation procedure has been carried out. There have been issues raised as to the 1975 Town Charter of the Town of Inglis as opposed to the original, 1955 Charter. There have also been issues raised as to the interpretation of the northern boundary of the Town of Inglis.

These issues have been raised by the pending lawsuit in Levy County, and damages have been sought for taxes allegedly levied improperly due to the northern boundary issue. The pending lawsuit also questions the actions of the Town Commission of the Town of Inglis under the 1975 amended Town Charter. Nothing has been raised to suggest that the Town cannot function — under the previous Town Charter should the 1975 amendment be found to have been improper.

There is no question but that the northern boundary issue is not relevant to the issuance of bonds, although it might be relevant to the service to a small portion of the Town if the matter is resolved against the Town. These adjustments can be made during the final planning and construction phase of the project, but cannot affect the validity of the project itself.

Nor can the 1955 versus 1975 Charter be relevant to the

bond issue. Under either Charter, the Town Commission is equally empowered to act.

ARGUMENT

In order to facilitate the Court's consideration of the arguments in this case, the Appelle will respond to the arguments of the Appellants in the order and in the form presented.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ENTERING A FINAL JUDGMENT WHICH CONTAINED CONCLUSIONS REGARDING THE AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF INGLIS TO CONDUCT ITS MUNICIPAL BUSINESS WHERE THERE WAS NO EVIDENCE SUBMITTED TO OR CITIED BY THE COURT WHICH WOULD SUSTAIN THOSE CONCLUSIONS.

As hereinabove noted, the Trial Court carefully outlined the authority of the Town of Inglis to act, citing Chapters 166, 215, and 170 of the Statutes of the State of Florida, as authority. This authority specifically deals with the right, power, and authority of the Town -- or of any Town or City -- to issue revenue bonds in the method utilized by the Town of Inglis. Further, as to the evidence required, this Court has stated quite plainly that the "introduction of the supporting resolution in evidence is all that was necessary to justify validation." Rianhard v. Port of Palm Beach District, 186 So.2d 503 (Fla. 1966), at 505.

The 1955 Charter of the Town provided, in Article XII,

Section 1, "That the Town of Inglis is not authorized and

shall not be empowered to issue bonds for any funded indebtedness."

(App. 1. p.22). The 1975 Charter contains no similar language,

but it is the position of Appelle that it does not matter which Charter is operative due to the action of the Legislature in passing the so-called Home Rule Act.

This Court faces a comparable issue in State v. City of Miami, 379 So.2d 651 (Fla. 1980), in which the City of Miami sought validation of a bond issue without a referendum, despite a requirement of a referendum in the Miami City Charter, and in which the City was entering a lease of more than thirty years, again the violation of the Miami City Charter. This court rejected the charter provisions stating that

"[T]hese provisions constitute limitations on the borrowing and leasing power of the City of Miami which have been nullified by Section 166.021 (4), Florida Statutes (1977).

"The Municipal Home Rule Powers Act [Act] set forth in Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, was intended to secure the grant of the broad home rule powers to municipalities as provided by article VIII, section 2 of the Florida Constitution. Municipalities are granted the authority to conduct municipal government, perform municipal functions, and render municipal services so long as the powers are exercised for municipal purposes. The Act not only fails to incorporate restrictions set forth in municipal charters, but also specifically provides that '[a]ny other limitation of power upon any municipality contained in any municipal charter enacted or adopted prior to July 1, 1973, is hereby nullified and repealed.' § 166.021(4), Fla. Stat. Supra, at 653-54.

It is clear that no language in the Inglis Town Charter could, after the adoption of the Municipal Home Rule Powers Act, limit the power of the Town granted by the Legislature to issue revenue bonds.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO GRANT INTERVENORS/APPELLANTS' REQUEST FOR A STAY ORDER IN THE BOND VALIDATION PROCEEDINGS PENDING RESOLUTION OF INTERVENORS/APPELLANTS' PRIOR-FILED CLASS ACTION LAWSUIT REQUESTING CERTAIN DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF RESPECTING THE TOWN OF INGLIS' AUTHORITY TO CONDUCT ITS MUNICIPAL BUSINESS WHERE THE PRINCI L ISSUE TO BE DECIDED IN BOTH PROCEEDINGS IS THE AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF INGLIS TO CONDUCT ITS MUNICIPAL BUSINESS.

The Appellants have queried whether or not the Town of Inglis has the authority to carry out its municipal functions either because the town boundaries are so uncertain or because the amended charter is voidable.

As to the first issue, it appears a bit late to challenge the legal description of the town boundaries in 1987, when the description has remained unchanged and the Town has operated with the blessing of the Legislature for more than thirty years prior to filing of the lawsuit. The real issue in the pending lawsuit is clearly a matter of interpretation as to the northerw boundary of the Town. This interpretation -- regardless of outcome -- would affect only a small percentage of the Town and of the area to be serviced by the water system. Amendments to the water system would be possible, so that there is no basis for claiming that irreputable harm would come to the Appellants if the water bond issue is validated.

Further, this Court has clearly stated that "[w]hether any territory is illegally embraced within the city limits cannot be determined in this proceeding." State v. City of

coral Gables, 154 So. 234, at 243 (Fla. 1934.) While recognizing that a boundary dispute is not relevant to a bond validation proceeding, Appellants argue that a boundary dispute should be ample justification for putting a bond validation proceeding on hold indefinitely, without providing any authority for this postion.

As to State v. city of Miami, Supra, Appellants urge that it is distinguishable from the instant cause because the City of Miami case did not deal directly with the authority of the city to act. However, the language of this Court in its opinion, as well as the clear language of the Legislature in the Municiapl Home rule Powers Act, clearly shows the transparent ridiculousness of this position. The issue, as discussed above, is "any" limitation of power. What Appellants attempt to create from smoke is just such a limitation -- a limitation upon the power of the Town of Inglis to borrow money.

Of further import as to the argument of Appellants that the bond validation procedure should be halted for an unstated period of time for the collateral matters raised by appellants is the further opinion of this Court in the Rainhard case that "[i]t is the intent of the law that validations be expedited at the earliest time reasonably possible." Rianhard v. Port of Palm Beach District, 186
So. 2d 503 at 505 (Fla. 1966). Appellants seeks to violate

this basic principle of law by delaying validation to wait upon a collateral case which has lain dormant for three months at this time, and for which no hearings have been scheduled.

It is important to note that this Court has opined, as to the role of the validating Court, that,

"Proceedings to validate bond are purely statutory"

"It was never intended that proceedings instituted under the authority of this chapter to validate governmental securities would be used for the purpose of deciding collateral issues not going directly to the power to issue the securities and the validity of the proceedings with relation thereto." State v. City of Miami, 103 So.2d. 185, at 188 (Fla. 1958)."

It is clear from all of the authority of the Courts and Legislature of this State that bond validation proceedings represent a test of procedure and authority. In the instant case, the authority is clearly present, being statutory as pointed out in the Final Judgment of the trial court, and the procedures have been found to be appropriate and were, in fact, never challenged by any party as being faulty.

Accordingly, it is clear that the Appellants are seeking delay for the sake of delay through a collateral attack upon the entire validation proceeding. This is not the law or intent of the Legislature of the State of Florida.

CONCLUSION

It is clear from the case at hand that the Town of Inglis has legislative authority to issue revenue bonds, and that no challenge has been made to the procedures through which the statutory mandate was carried out.

It is further clear that there is no impediment to the issue of revenue bonds by the Town of Inglis through its charter -- regardless of which charter is considered. The Municiapl Home Rule Powers Act has removed any impediment which might have arisen.

It is also clear that the north boundary dispute does not bear directly upon the issues properly considered by the trial court, and cannot be the basis for a stay of the validation proceedings, since any problems arising from the alleged dispute can be resolved prior to construction of the water system if need be. This is not an issue which speaks to the validity of the bond issue.

Finally, it is clear that the Appellants in this case are simply attempting to do indirectly that which they recognize they cannot do directly -- delay the water system and its bond issue on the basis of purely collateral matters.

Wherefore, the Appelle respectfully requests that this Honorable Court will expedite this cause as intended by this Court, and deny all relief sought by Appellants and affirm the actions of the trial court.